From: Miguel Nunez <M.Nunez@fehrandpeers.com>

Sent time: 12/19/2019 10:01:15 AM

To: Bhuvan Bajaj <bhuvan.bajaj@]lacity.org>

Cc: Eduardo Hermoso <eduardo.hermoso@lacity.org>; Tom Gaul <T.Gaul@fehrandpeers.com>
Subject: RE: Hollywood Center Signal Warrants

Attachments: DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Hi Bhuvan,

Per our conversation I'm sending the signal warrant package with the labels on each sheet. I'm looking into your
question about the other warrants.

If you have any questions/comments my direct line is 213-261-3072. Thanks.

Regards,
Miguel

Miguel NUfez, AICP
Senior Associate

FEHR 4 PEERS

Los Angeles

600 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 1050
Los Angeles, CA 90017

(213) 261-3050

From: Bhuvan Bajaj <bhuvan.bajaj@Iacity.org>

Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2019 7:49 AM

To: Miguel Nunez <M.Nunez@fehrandpeers.com>

Cc: Eduardo Hermoso <eduardo.hermoso@lacity.org>; Tom Gaul <T.Gaul@fehrandpeers.com>
Subject: Re: Hollywood Center Signal Warrants

Hi Miguel,

Apologies for the delayed response. | am free this afternoon, tomorrow morning, and Friday mid-day. You can try my work cell
at 213.369.2546. | can also receive texts.

Thanks,

Bhuvan Bajaj, P.E.
Transportation EngineerHollywood-Wilshire
District Operations

Los Angeles Department of Transportation
323.957.6843 W f o

LADOT

On Fri, Dec 13, 2019 at 10:38 AM Miguel Nunez <M.Nunez@fehrandpeers.com> wrote:

Hi Bhuvan,

| just left a VM regarding the email below and it is my understanding you are not currently in the office. Would you
be free to speak for a few minutes next week? Here are a few options:

e Monday 12/16 at 3:30PM
e Tuesday 12/17 at 1PM
e Wednesday 12/18 at 10AM


https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FLADOTofficial&data=02%7C01%7CM.Nunez%40fehrandpeers.com%7Ca82f8afa482845d89fc008d783d1d65a%7C087dca4b49c742c6a76649a3f29fc3f4%7C1%7C0%7C637122809594444554&sdata=T%2BRH%2FQGv3PJ5Xyua6PYIexNhNzwn0HT5rzKffh%2FhxGw%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fladotofficial&data=02%7C01%7CM.Nunez%40fehrandpeers.com%7Ca82f8afa482845d89fc008d783d1d65a%7C087dca4b49c742c6a76649a3f29fc3f4%7C1%7C0%7C637122809594454555&sdata=DtAwIAGaF9emazBTAXrl2NYahgVmVSvVzrUETSEk33E%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fladotofficial&data=02%7C01%7CM.Nunez%40fehrandpeers.com%7Ca82f8afa482845d89fc008d783d1d65a%7C087dca4b49c742c6a76649a3f29fc3f4%7C1%7C0%7C637122809594464549&sdata=%2BVOjOq%2FDyp2r8Qdaq%2FhvdRbk%2BFmEITdiQ7l71OcBL6Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2FLADOT2012&data=02%7C01%7CM.Nunez%40fehrandpeers.com%7Ca82f8afa482845d89fc008d783d1d65a%7C087dca4b49c742c6a76649a3f29fc3f4%7C1%7C0%7C637122809594464549&sdata=7vh0QWZDiZi5JEV%2B3O86SWG9lhCAB3Z53JuLR5YoyOw%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fladot.lacity.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7CM.Nunez%40fehrandpeers.com%7Ca82f8afa482845d89fc008d783d1d65a%7C087dca4b49c742c6a76649a3f29fc3f4%7C1%7C0%7C637122809594474546&sdata=hAHRiHsZfwUbH9mJVXn7bEa90PfTZJGv9f%2B7AmVzjI0%3D&reserved=0
mailto:M.Nunez@fehrandpeers.com

Thanks.

Regards,
Miguel

Miguel Nufez, AICP
Senior Associate

FEHR A PEERS

Los Angeles

600 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 1050
Los Angeles, CA 90017

(213) 261-3050

From: Miguel Nunez

Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2019 9:09 AM

To: bhuvan.bajaj@lacity.org

Cc: Eduardo Hermoso <eduardo.hermoso@lacity.org>; Tom Gaul <T.Gaul@fehrandpeers.com>
Subject: Hollywood Center Signal Warrants

Hi Bhuvan,

We spoke about a month ago regarding the signal warrants for the Hollywood Center project. When we spoke we
discussed submitting a streamlined signal warrant package with a write-up describing the approach for the peak
hour warrant, including the consideration of right-turn volumes. I'm sending a revised package with the write-up
and signal warrant sheets. We have analysis for other time periods and scenarios if you would like to see that info.

We have a Transportation Assessment Report under review and are working to coordinate the review and
assessment letter and ask that you reach out if you have any questions or need any other data. Can you take a look
and let us know an estimated timeline for review? Thank you.

Regards,
Miguel

Miguel Nufez, AICP
Senior Associate

FEHR ¥ PEERS

Los Angeles

600 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 1050
Los Angeles, CA 90017

(213) 261-3050



mailto:bhuvan.bajaj@lacity.org
mailto:eduardo.hermoso@lacity.org
mailto:T.Gaul@fehrandpeers.com

DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Driveway Signal Warrant Analysis

The Project driveway for the east site is proposed to be signalized, located at Argyle Avenue & Carlos
Avenue, providing pedestrian access across Argyle Avenue and vehicular access to the East Building. A
signal warrant analysis was conducted accordingly.

The Peak Hour warrant analysis were conducted in accordance with the procedures described in
Chapter 4C of the MUTCD 2014. The warrant for a traffic signal is met if a plotted point representing the
vehicles per hour on the major street (for both approaches) and the corresponding vehicles per hour on
the higher-volume minor-street approach (one direction only) for one hour lies above the applicable
curve in Figure 4C-3 in the MUTCD 2014 for the combination of approach lanes. If the combined volume
of the major approaches and the corresponding conflicting volumes are greater than the threshold
determined by the intersection configuration, then a traffic signal could be warranted.

The volumes were developed by obtaining existing counts at Argyle Avenue & Carlos Avenue and
layering on related project volumes, ambient growth, and project volumes (as defined in our MOU with
LADOT). The project volumes were added to reflect the project’s trip distribution for residential,
commercial, and/or hotel uses.

Signal warrant guidance allows for adjustments to right-turn volumes depending on the configuration of
the approach lanes. The east/west legs of the intersection are single lane approaches where right-turns

will not have their own turn lane. As a result, the right-turn volumes were included in the signal warrant
analysis.

The signal warrants results presented are for the peak hours under Existing plus Project and Future
(opening) Year Future Year 2027 with Project (Future Year 2040 are also available) scenarios for the
Residential and Hotel options. The peak hour signal warrant is met as seen in Table 1.

Peak hour signal warrant sheets for the scenarios presented are attached.

Signal warrants for this location are available for other analysis scenarios upon request.

TABLE 1
HOLLYWOOD CENTER
SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS

PEAK SIGNAL WARRANT MET?
INTERSECTION FUTURE (2027)
HOUR
EXISTING+PROJECT PLUS PROJECT
Argyle Avenue & Driveway/Carlos Ave DA YES YES
(Residential Scenario) o
Argyle Avenue & Driveway/Carlos Ave PM YES YES
(Hotel Scenario)




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Existing (2018) Plus Project - Residential Option (pg. 1)

FreERR”y FEERD
Project Hollywood Center
Major Street  Argyle Ave Scenario  EP_PM Residential
Minor Street  Driveway/Carlos Ave Peak Hour PM
Turn Movement Volumes Major Street Direction
NB SB EB WB
Left 128 21 81 20 X North/South
Through 731 203 0 0 East/West
Right 49 98 116 18
Total 908 322 197 38

Warrant 3B, Peak Hour
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Major Street - Total of Both Approaches - Vehicle Per Hour (VPH)

Minor Street Higher Volume Approach - VPH

* Note: 150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street
approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower
threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

Source: California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Caltrans, 2014

Major Street Minor Street
Argyle Ave Driveway/Carlos Ave Warrant Met
Number of Approach Lanes 2 1
YES
Traffic Volume (VPH) * 1,230 197

* Note: Traffic Volume for Major Street is Total Volume of Both Approches.
Traffic Volume for Minor Street is the Volume of High Volume Approach.




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Existing (2018) Plus Project - Residential Option (pg. 2)

Fl— = — a/= E — — — o~

FreERARY FEERDS

Major Street  Argyle Ave

Minor Street  Driveway/Carlos Ave

Turn Movement Volumes

NB SB EB WB

Left 128 21 81 20
Through 731 203 0 0
Right 49 98 116 18
Total 908 322 197 38
Intersection Geometry

Number of Approach Lanes for Minor Street 1
Total Approaches 4
Worst Case Delay for Minor Street
Stopped Delay (seconds per vehicle) 210.3
Approach with Worst Case Delay EB
Total Vehicles on Approach 197

Project

Hollywood Center

Scenario

EP_PM Residential

Peak Hour PM

Major Street Direction

X

North/South
East/West

Warrant 3A, Peak Hour

Peak Hour Delay on
Minor Approach

Peak Hour Volume
on Minor Approach

Peak Hour Entering
Volume Serviced

(vehicle-hours) (vph) (vph)

EP_PM Residential 115 197 1,465
Limiting Value 4 100 800
Condition Satisfied? Met Met Met

Warrant Met

<
m
wn




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Existing (2018) Plus Project - Hotel Option (pg. 1)

T

Major Street
Minor Street

[Tl

1

Argyle Ave

Driveway/Carlos Ave

Turn Movement Volumes

p

Scenario

roject

Hollywood Center

EP_PM Hotel

Peak Hour PM

NB SB EB WB
Left 131 21 86 20
Through 731 203 0 0
Right 49 99 125 18
Total 911 323 211 38

Major Street Direction

X

North/South
East/West

Minor Street Higher Volume Approach - VPH
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1000

1100 1200

1300 1400

150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street

approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower
threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

Source: California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Caltrans, 2014

1500 1600

1700 1800

Major Street Minor Street
Argyle Ave Driveway/Carlos Ave Warrant Met
Number of Approach Lanes 2 1
YES
Traffic Volume (VPH) * 1,234 211

* Note: Traffic Volume for Major Street is Total Volume of Both Approches.
Traffic Volume for Minor Street is the Volume of High Volume Approach.




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Existing (2018) Plus Project - Hotel Option (pg. 2)

T
[Tl
T

Major Street
Minor Street

Argyle Ave

Driveway/Carlos Ave

Turn Movement Volumes

Project Hollywood Center

Scenario EP_PM Hotel

Peak Hour PM

Major Street Direction

NB SB EB WB
Left 131 21 86 20 X North/South
Through 731 203 0 0 East/West
Right 49 99 125 18
Total 911 323 211 38
Intersection Geometry
Number of Approach Lanes for Minor Street 1
Total Approaches 4
Worst Case Delay for Minor Street
Stopped Delay (seconds per vehicle) 243.6
Approach with Worst Case Delay EB
Total Vehicles on Approach 211

Warrant 3A, Peak Hour

Peak Hour Delay on
Minor Approach

Peak Hour Volume
on Minor Approach

Peak Hour Entering
Volume Serviced

(vehicle-hours) (vph) (vph)

EP_PM Hotel 14.3 211 1,483
Limiting Value 4 100 800
Condition Satisfied? Met Met Met

Warrant Met
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DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Future (2027) Plus Project - Residential Option (pg. 1)

T

Major Street

Argyle Ave

Minor Street

Driveway/Carlos Ave

Turn Movement Volumes

p

Scenario

P

NB SB EB WB
Left 128 22 81 21
Through 1,118 351 0 0
Right 51 98 116 19
Total 1,297 471 197 40

roject

Hollywood Center

CP2027_PM Residential

eak Hour PM

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
Traffic Volume (VPH) * 1,768 197

* Note: Traffic Volume for Major Street is Total Volume of Both Approches.
Traffic Volume for Minor Street is the Volume of High Volume Approach.




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Future (2027) Plus Project - Residential Option (pg. 2)

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
Stopped Delay (seconds per vehicle) 13554
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

CP2027_PM Residential 74.2 197 2,005
Limiting Value 4 100 800
Condition Satisfied? Met Met Met

Warrant Met
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DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Future (2027) Plus Project - Hotel Option (pg. 1)

T

Major Street

Argyle Ave

Minor Street

Driveway/Carlos Ave

Turn Movement Volumes

p

Scenario

roject

Hollywood Center

CP2027_PM Hotel

Peak Hour PM

NB SB EB WB
Left 131 22 86 21
Through 1,118 351 0 0
Right 51 99 125 19
Total 1,300 472 211 40

Major Street Direction

X

North/South
East/West

Warrant 3B, Peak Hour

150*
100~

* Note:

150 vph applies as the lower threshold volume for a minor-street

approach with two or more lanes and 100 vph applies as the lower

threshold volume for a minor-street approach with one lane.

1800

E 600

. ‘ 2 or More Lanes & 2 or More LaneLs

§ 500 4

g_ 400 \\ 2|or More Lanes & 1 Lane

[«%

<

o

£ 300 S

=]

G S —

> 200

2 yd

2 100

T 1|Lane & 1 Lane

[}

g o

(7] 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300 1400 1500 1600 1700
1S

_g Major Street - Total of Both Approaches - Vehicle Per Hour (VPH)
=

Source: California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Caltrans, 2014

Major Street Minor Street
Argyle Ave Driveway/Carlos Ave Warrant Met
Number of Approach Lanes 2 1
YES
Traffic Volume (VPH) * 1,772 211

* Note: Traffic Volume for Major Street is Total Volume of Both Approches.

Traffic Volume for Minor Street is the Volume of High Volume Approach.




DvwySigWarrantSummaryv3.pdf

Future (2027) Plus Project - Hotel Option (pg. 2)

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
Stopped Delay (seconds per vehicle) 1468.2
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

CP2027_PM Hotel 86.1 211 2,023
Limiting Value 4 100 800
Condition Satisfied? Met Met Met

Warrant Met
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